
1

SUMMONS

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL

Wednesday 11 July 2018

Council Chamber, The Forum

You are hereby summoned to a meeting of the Dacorum Borough Council in the County 
of Hertfordshire to be held in the Council Chamber, The Forum on Wednesday 11 July 
2018 at 7.30 pm to transact the business set out below.

SALLY MARSHALL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

TO ALL MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL

Contact: Jim Doyle ext 2222

Public Document Pack



2

AGENDA

1. MINUTES  

To confirm the minutes of the previous meeting of the council 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

To receive any declarations of interest

3. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

To consider questions (if any) by members of the public of which the appropriate notice 
has been given to the Solicitor to the Council.

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS  

To receive announcements and business brought forward by the Mayor, Leader, and 
Members of the Cabinet or the Chief Executive.

4.1 By the Mayor: 

4.2 By the Chief Executive:

4.3 By the Group Leaders:  Any apologies for absence

4.4 Council Leader and Members of the Cabinet:

Councillor Williams Leader of the Council 
Councillor G Sutton Planning & Infrastructure
Councillor Marshall Environmental Services
Councillor Elliot Finance & Resources
Councillor Mrs Griffiths Housing
Councillor D Collins Corporate & Contracted Services
Councillor Harden Community & Regulatory Services

5. QUESTIONS  

To consider questions (if any) by members of the Council of which the appropriate 
notice has been given to the Solicitor to the Council.

6. BUSINESS FROM THE LAST COUNCIL MEETING  

To consider any business referred from the previous meeting

7. CABINET REFERRALS  (Pages 4 - 12)



3

To consider the following referrals from Cabinet:

7.1  CA/049/18 24 April 2018 Formalisation of Grovehill          
Neighbourhood Plan

7.2  CA/058/18 22 May 2018 Financial Outturn 2017/18
7.3  CA/059/18 22 May 2018 Amendments to Staff Terms & Conditions
7.4  CA/071/18 26 June 2018 Constitution & Petition Scheme Review & 

Update

PART 2

7.5  CA/062/18 26 June 2018 Jellicoe Water Gardens Project

8. OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY REFERRALS  

None.

9. CHANGES TO COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP  (Pages 13 - 18)

To consider the final 2018/19 committee membership.

10. CHANGE TO COMMITTEE DATES  

To consider any proposals for changes to committee dates

11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  

To consider passing a resolution in the following terms:

That, under s.100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 Schedule 12A Part 1 as 
amended by the Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006 the 
public be excluded during the items in Part 2 of the Agenda for this meeting, because it 
is likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that, if members of the 
public were present during those items, there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information relating to the financial and business affairs of the Council and third party 
companies/organisations.



CABINET REFERRALS

24th April 2018

7.1 CA/049/18 FORMALISATION OF GROVEHILL NEIGHBOURHOOD 
PLAN

Decision

RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND; 

That Council formally ‘makes’ the Grovehill Future Neighbourhood Plan as part of the 
Local Plan following a YES vote at Referendum 15th February.  

Reason for Decision

To acknowledge the ‘YES’ vote at Referendum on 15th March 2018 and  propose that 
Council formally ‘make’ the Grovehill Future Neighbourhood Plan as a statutory planning 
document

Corporate objectives

The Grovehill Future Neighbourhood Plan supports the Council’s vision and in particular the 
corporate objectives of building community capacity, regeneration and affordable housing.

Monitoring Officer/S.151 Officer comments

Monitoring Officer:   

The Localism Act states the “Council must make a neighbourhood development plan to which 
the proposal relates, if in each applicable referendum under that Schedule (as so applied) 
more than half of those voting have voted in favour of the plan”. The referendum result is clear 
and so therefore the only option available to the Council is to make the Grovehill Future 
Neighbourhood Plan.

S.151 Officer:
There are no direct immediate financial implications for the council.  Any future plans will need 
to be developed within the normal council financial planning processes and be submitted for 
consideration as part of the Medium Term Financial planning cycle.

Advice

Cllr Sutton introduced report advising this went to a vote within Grovehill and received a yes 
to go forward.  There are various issues for consideration around land ownership etc and 
this is an opportunity for us to now refine and put forward to full Council.

JDoe added the reason to put to Council is to get sign off of the plan.  What the yes vote 
means is that the plan has to be taken into account by us when making planning decisions 
within the defined planning area in Grovehill.  

Page 4

Agenda Item 7



Cllr Williams commented that it is widely assumed that the plan centres on Henry Wells 
Square and surrounding areas, but it is actually wider than that.

JDoe confirmed it covers the whole estate and anyone making an application within that 
area will have to follow the plan.

Cllr Douris recalled JDoe coming to a meeting in Henry Wells Square back in 2011, 
commenting that he takes great pride in seeing this coming to conclusion.

Recommendation agreed.

Voting

None.

22nd May 2018

7.2 CA/058/18 FINANCIAL OUT TURN 2017/18

Decision

RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND; 

That Council;

1. Approve the carry forward of unspent reserve funded budgets from 2017/18 to 
2018/19 (see Appendix D of the report to Cabinet, £315k slippage into 2018/19) 

2. Approve the use of the Housing Revenue Account surplus to fund an 
increased Revenue Contribution to Capital

Reason for decision

To agree details of the provisional outturn position for the: 

· General Fund 
· Housing Revenue Account 
· Capital Programme

Corporate objectives

Delivering an efficient and modern council

Monitoring Officer/S.151 Officer comments

Monitoring Officer:   
No further comments to add.

S.151 Officer:
This is a S.151 Officer report.

Advice

Page 5



Cllr Elliot introduced the report and expressed his view that we are getting better at 
managing and forecasting, also recognised the challenges ahead of us to meet future saving 
targets.

JDeane added that this year we finished within 0.4% of budget, commenting that there are 
some positives to be drawn on accuracy and forecasting and adding that with expected 
reductions in government funding over next few years we will see a more challenging 
budgetary environment.  

Cllr Sutton referred to the £240k generated by volume of planning applications.  JDoe 
confirmed it was a good year for income.

Cllr Williams commented that we have made quite significant savings and have better 
financial control in terms of coming in on budget and producing our budget.  Emphasising 
that the saving requirements referred to are going to be significant in terms of challenge.

Cllr Tindall referred to the £1.2m mentioned in the report as retained for upgrade fire safety 
work, advising he read somewhere that central government will pay for replacement of 
panels for remedial work arising from Grenfell fallout.  He asked, is it the intention that this 
fire safety work will be panel replacement? In which case, if read correctly, the government 
will be funding it?

MGaynor advised we do not have any buildings where we could apply for funding, this 
upgrade work is to ensure we are doing the upmost to ensure all our tenants and 
leaseholders are safe in all of our buildings.

Cllr Griffiths advised there was some panelling on a new build, which was changed, but 
would not have qualified for funding due to building height.  There was also another build still 
in the planning stages where there was intention to use panels, for which the plans were 
changed.

Recommendations agreed.

Voting

None.

22nd May 2018

7.3 CA/060/18 AMENDMENTS TO STAFF TERMS & CONDITIONS

Decision

RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND;

That Council approves the changes to the redundancy multiplier as set out in 
paragraph 3.2 of the report.

Reason for Decision

For Cabinet to approve the changes to the redundancy multiplier and recommend to Council 
that these are implemented.     

Page 6



Corporate objectives

Delivering a modern and efficient Council – To ensure our existing terms and conditions are 
modern and attractive for staff whilst also offering value for residents.

Monitoring Officer/S.151 Officer comments

Monitoring Officer:   

This report was not on the Council’s forward plan and therefore the consent of the chairman 
of the Finance and Resources Overview and scrutiny committee was obtained to treat this 
matter as an urgent report.

S.151 Officer:
All redundancy cases are assessed on a case by case basis and the business case to justify 
any decision has to provide value for money.

Redundancies will only be approved if the financial business case Is positive, hence there 
should be no direct financial impact on the existing budget, but future redundancy business 
cases will provide less savings to the council.

Advice

Cllr Williams advised this follows some dispute over T&C changes to redundancy, which 
lead to further negotiation with the result that we have amended our original decision, as set 
out in report.  Recommendation is to ask Full Council to approve the revised proposal.

26th June 2018

Decision

7.4 CA/071/18 CONSTITUTION & PETITION SCHEME REVIEW & UPDATE

RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND;

1. That Council adopt the amended Petition Scheme as annexed at Appendix 1A of the 
Cabinet report; and include a change in paragraph 5 (The word ‘ago’ be replaced 
with ‘previously’).

Reason for Decision

1. To seek approval to amend the Constitution to reflect changes to staffing structures, 
operational changes and new legislation.

2. To consider proposed amendments to the Council’s Petition Scheme

Corporate objectives

The Constitution and the Council’s Financial Regulations support all of the Council’s 
Corporate Objectives as they provide the governance framework for all decisions, strategic 
and operational.

Page 7



Monitoring Officer/S.151 Officer comments

Monitoring Officer:   

This is a Monitoring Officer report.

S.151 Officer:
No direct financial implications as a result of the recommendations requested.

Advice

Cllr Williams introduced the report which includes changes to the petition scheme and 
updates the Constitution, primarily following the changes to Portfolio Holders as announced 
at Annual Council.

MBrookes advised one small change to recommendation 1; that Cabinet approves the 
changes to the constitution set out in paragraphs 5 & 7 and makes reference to paragraphs 
9 & 10 in the background report to take account to the changes to Portfolio Holders.

Cllr Harden said that his understanding is that government changed its mind over the 2 year 
window, from encouraging petitions through the Localism Act, to not to require petitions, is 
that correct?  MBrookes confirmed that yes, they were quite prescriptive in the original rules 
but they have withdrawn those and it is now for councils to decide.  Most Councils still have 
a petition scheme and he was suggesting that we retain an amended version of ours.

Cllr Harden asked for clarification around online petitions and the difficulties identifying and 
validating those individuals who work, study or live in the area. 

MBrookes advised that we are asking that email addresses are appended to any petition so 
that we can go back and ask for evidence of local connection; if they ignore the inquiry we 
may have to look at discounting that particular petitioner. He suggested that the number 
involved it is unlikely to make a big difference.  He drew attention to the need to ensure 
petitioners Data is protected.

Cllr Marshall, following on from Cllr Harden’s question, accepted it would be impossible to 
check out every petitioner but it would be nice to include a simple tick box to identify whether 
they are resident, work or study in this area so that when they sign up they pause and 
consider their connection to Dacorum.  

MBrookes responded it would be nice to have, but we would have to have our own online 
petition system which would be quite expensive to purchase and maintain, we are trying to 
encourage people to use the readily available, free online systems.

Cllr Marshall referred to the top of pg. 51 under paragraph 7 of section c and the need to 
avoid publishing email addresses on the website, and confirmed that only names would 
appear on the website. 

MBrookes took the point on board and advised would he would re-look at wording and 
amend if necessary; he clarified that we would not be publishing email addresses.  

Page 8



Cllr Tindall referred to pg. 39, first paragraph that reads ‘remove references to local 
democracy and economic development’, does that mean that we won’t accept petitions on 
those subjects in future?

MBrookes responded that the original Act that brought in the requirement for petitions has 
been repealed and no longer exists, so the references to it have been removed.

Cllr Tindall was concerned that it could be read as the Council is trying to deny petitions on 
local democracy and he suggested rewording that paragraph.

Cllr Tindall referred to pg.40, second paragraph read extend circumstances under which a 
petition be deemed invalid to include ‘or otherwise inappropriate’; does this give scope for 
the Council to pick and choose what petitions it accepts?

MBrookes responded that was not the intention, what we are trying to do is give a bit of 
discretion about how the policy is applied but it would be in very prescriptive circumstances 
that we would refuse to consider a petition.

Cllr Tindall commented that again, it does not read well in print and might be amended.

MBrookes advised that one of the areas we would apply this discretion would be where there 
has been repeated debate already on the matter.

Cllr Tindall added that he does not disagree with that, but the wording reads like the Council 
is trying to limit debate and officers may wish to review how it is written.

Cllr Griffiths commented that she can understand why this clause has been included, as it 
avoids listing reasons why we would not accept a petition, this wording allows us ensure 
improper petitions are excluded. 

Cllr Harden suggested using wording such as ‘or otherwise debated’, commenting that 
‘inappropriate’ may not be the right word.  

AWilliams thanked Cllr Tindall for his comments, but advised that he is happy with the 
wording, commenting that any wording used will always be open to interpretation. 

Cllr Douris referred to pg. 50, paragraph 5, the last line of the last bullet point, and suggested 
that the word ‘ago’ is changed to ‘previously’.

Recommendations noted.

Page 9



Document is Restricted

Page 10

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



1
May 2018

MEMBERSHIP OF CABINET, OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES, POLICY 
DEVELOPMENT PANELS AND STANDARDS COMMITTEE 2015-2019

CABINET

Cabinet Portfolio Holder Conservative
Leader & Community Leadership Cllr Williams
Finance & Resources Cllr Elliot
Housing Cllr Mrs Griffiths (Deputy Leader)
Environmental Services Cllr Marshall
Community and regulatory Services Cllr Harden
Planning & Infrastructure Cllr G Sutton 
Corporate & Contracted Services Cllr D Collins 

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEES  

HOUSING AND COMMUNITY (13 members = 10:2:1) 

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour 
Anthony Armytage Adrian England Tony Fethney
Gbola Adeleke Lara Pringle
Julie Banks 
Hazel Bassadone 
Olive Conway 
Penny Hearn
Isy Imarni (Vice Chair)
Suqlain Mahmood (Chair)
Stan Mills
William Wyatt-Lowe

Substitutes
Robert McLean Roxanne Ransley
Tina Howard Ron Tindall
Michael Clark Brenda Link

FINANCE AND RESOURCES (13 members = 11:1:1) 

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour 
Gbola Adeleke Ron Tindall Tony Fethney
Anthony Armytage
Graham Barrett
Herbert Chapman (Chair)
Elaine Collins
Julie Banks (Vice Chair)
Terry Douris  
Tina Howard
Robert McLean
Roger Taylor 
Goverdhan Silwal 

Substitutes
Alan Anderson Lara Pringle
William Wyatt -  Lowe Roxanne Ransley 
Christina Brown Adrian England

Page 13

Agenda Item 9



2
May 2018

Fiona Guest
Peter Matthews

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT (13 members = 11:1:1) 

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour 
Stephen Bateman Roxanne Ransley Anne Fisher
Alan Anderson (Chair)
John Birnie (Vice Chair)
Stephen Hearn
Mike Hicks 
Tina Howard 
Peter Matthews
Stewart Riddick 
Jane Timmis
Colette Wyatt–Lowe 
Vacancy

Substitutes
Graham Adshead Brenda Link
Robert McLean Ron Tindall
Tom Ritchie Adrian England

Lara Pringle

HEALTH IN DACORUM COMMITTEE (8 members = 6:1:1) 

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour Independent
John Birnie Adrian England n/a Jan Maddern
Christina Brown
Fiona Guest (Chair)
Mike Hicks
Tina Howard
Roger Taylor (Vice 
Chairman)

Substitutes
Ron Tindall
Brenda Link
Roxanne Ransley
Lara Pringle

AUDIT COMMITTEE (6 members = 5:1:0)

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour
John Birnie Ron Tindall
Terry Douris 
Robert McLean
Roger Taylor (Chair)
Goverdan Silwal

Substitutes
Graham Adshead Lara Pringle
Alan Anderson Roxanne Ransley 

Adrian England

Page 14



3
May 2018

DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE (13 members = 10:1:1:1) 

APPEALS AND REVIEWS COMMITTEE

APPEALS (9 members = 8:1:0)

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour
Gbola Adeleke Brenda Link n/a

Hazel Bassadone (Chair)
Olive Conway 
Penny Hearn (Vice Chair)
Stan Mills
Stewart Riddick 
Rosie Sutton 
Roger Taylor 

Substitutes
Ron Tindall

Conservative  Liberal Democrat Labour Independent
Stephen Bateman Ron Tindall Anne Fisher Jan Maddern
John Birnie 
Michael Clark
Olive Conway 
Fiona Guest (Chair)
Peter Matthews
Stewart Riddick 
Tom Ritchie 
John Whitman 
Colette Wyatt-Lowe (Vice Chair)

Substitutes
Isy Imarni Brenda Link
Colin Peter Roxanne Ransley 
Hazel Bassadone
Stan Mills

Page 15



4
May 2018

LICENSING AND HEALTH AND SAFETY ENFORCEMENT COMMITTEE 
(11 members = 10:1:0)

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour
Gbola Adeleke Brenda Link n/a
Hazel Bassadone 
Olive Conway 
Terry Douris
Penny Hearn (Chair)
Tina Howard (Vice Chair)
Stan Mills 
Colin Peter 
Roger Taylor 
John Whitman 

LICENSING AND HEALTH AND SAFETY ENFORCEMENT SUB-COMMITTEE 
(7 members = 6:1:0)

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour
Penny Hearn (Chair) Brenda Link n/a
Hazel Bassadone 
Olive Conway 
Roger Taylor
Tina Howard ( Vice Chair)
John Whitman 

Substitutes

LICENSING OF ALCOHOL & GAMBLING SUB-COMMITTEE (3 members  2:1:0)

This Committee consists of a Panel of 3 Members who are picked from the Members of the 
Licensing and Health and Safety Enforcement Committee.  Only Members who have had 
training on the Licensing of Alcohol & Gambling Sub-Committee can sit  on this Panel.  

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour

Page 16



5
May 2018

STANDARDS COMMITTEE (5 members = 3:1:1)

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour
Alan Anderson Ron Tindall Ann Fisher
Peter Matthews
Roger Taylor 

Substitutes
Colette Wyatt-Lowe Brenda Link
Independent Town Council Rep
Cllr Phil Hills (Tring Town Council)

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE (5 members 5:0:0)

Conservative Liberal Democrats Labour 
Hazel Bassadone 
Mrs Margaret Griffiths 
Graham Sutton 
Andrew Williams 
Colette Wyatt-Lowe

ELECTORAL REVIEW COMMITTEE

Conservative (5) Liberal Democrats (1) Labour (1)
Alan Anderson Adrian England Anne Fisher 
Terry Douris 
Mike Hicks
Janice Marshall
Andrew Williams 

Substitutes
Neil Harden Ron Tindal 
Colette Wyatt-Lowe

OTHERS

JNC (JOINT NEGOTIATING COMMITTEE)

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour

Christina Brown
Herbert Chapman 
Roger Taylor 
John Whitman 
Colette Wyatt-Lowe

Substitutes
Graham Adshead
Isy Imarni

Page 17



6
May 2018

MEMBER DEVELOPMENT STEERING GROUP

Conservative Liberal Democrat Labour 
Graham Adshead
Julie Banks 
Vacant 
Terry Douris 
Mike Hicks
Tina Howard
Roger Taylor 

Page 18


	Agenda
	7 Cabinet referrals
	Council-11-07-18-Cabinet referrals (Part 2)

	9 Changes to committee membership

